
 
 

 

Guidelines on outsourcing in life science 

Outsourcing process increases substantially every year among both small and large 

drug developing companies. Lab outsourcing allows a company and other institutions to trade 

higher fixed-costs for lower variable-costs, reducing the need for capital investment and 

allowing instant access to world-class analytical expertise and capabilities on short notice, 

using laboratory services only when needed. Services can be found in both the private and 

public sectors, represented by companies, science park facilities and university core facilities. 

This guide aims to support the outsourcing companies in their selection of service 

providers, by establishing some simple practical advice.  

1- How do I define the outsourcing project? 

This first step sets the stage for the entire process. It is important to have a clear 

picture of the aim of the project; set the correct level of quality requirement of the service, 

what needs must be met by internally, by authorities by potential customers. 

Decisions to be taken include, who is going to be responsible for each action point, 

what level of quality is needed, time schedule and milestones. The user rights of results, 

intellectual property rights and publication rights should also be considered at this stage. Be 

careful to define what shall and what shall not be included.  

It is important to have sufficient knowledge of the activity to be outsourced in order to 

establish the requirements and evaluate the service provider. If not available in house it is 

advisable to consult professional help in the definition of the project and in the evaluation of 

the proposals. This is especially important for long term projects and the use of clinical trial 

projects.  

A request for proposal (RFP) is prepared based on the definition of the outsourcing 

project, and is sent to selected service providers. Keep in mind that a well prepared RFP will 

result in good precision of the resulting quotes. 

2- Who do I contact and how? 

To whom would you trust your project from the wide variety of contract laboratories, 

all more than happy to offer you their services? In order to find suitable service providers, use 

existing platforms such as Contract-Biotechnology.com (www.contract-biotechnology.com).   

Publish the request for proposal at Contract-Biotehnology.com. One of the advantages 

of using Contract-Biotechnology.com is that the requests are written in anonymous way, so 

you can negotiate or turn down any incoming offers and your contact remains still 

confidential. Contract-Bitechnology.com acts as the first filter.  You will get the first impression 

of the companies. 

 



 
 

 

As soon as you have a list of providers, take a look to their companies’ profiles and ask 

for meetings with the selected providers, where you will go through some of the main 

questions you have regarding the assignment and the provider. This meeting will shorten the 

list of potential providers even more, as well as provide more input to the definition of the 

outsourcing project. Aim for two to four providers. More than four will cause undesired extra 

work load for all parties. 

3- How do I evaluate the proposals? 

Before doing the evaluation of the proposals, think through the different criteria that 

have to be met, like: 

- Quality track record 

- One-stop-shop. Can the provider perform all services themselves, or do I need several 

providers? 

- Technical capabilities and competence 

- Responsiveness 

- Project management structure 

- Communication skills of the provider  

- Language 

- Cost, including the hidden costs which can be huge (e.g. milestone payments, royalties). 

- The total cost, including e.g. the transport from the provider, storage 

- Time for the different deliveries 

- Distance 

From the weighted criteria, make a selection of one or two candidate companies. 

Do not forget to try to be objective about the perceived transparency for each specific 

company. Is there a match between what the service provider says and what you see? 

4- How do I assure quality? 

In discovery phase and early phase of development, quality system status is not 

needed from regulatory point of view, but in some studies during the later development and 

clinical studies the GLP status is required by the authorities. Even if you work in a QC label free 

environment and do not need a label from quality system to your studies from official reasons, 

it is worth checking how your partner has taken care of the issue. Does it seem likely that they 

can keep the correct quality level? Will they respond to your demands? Be sure to check all 

parts of the quality system: does the company have all the necessary permissions?  



 
 

 

Professional support in the evaluation of quality assurance (QA) processes is of great 

value for a successful project. There are consultants for the QA session.  

5- Which agreements do I need? 

 Agreements such as memorandum of understanding, letter of intents, heads of 

agreements and term-sheets, in order to define limit and general goals of the activity. 

 Confidentiality agreement/secrecy agreements/non disclosure agreements (NDA) in 

order to define back-ground knowledge and what knowledge will be developed after 

the outsourced activity. 

 Study protocol could be part of the business agreement or separate to define exactly 

what, which, how and when the outsourced activity will be realized from a 

scientific/technical point of view. 

 Research contract/cooperative research agreement/service agreement that define 

juridical and business aspects (e.g. value of activities, responsibilities, contact persons, 

law applicable, etc) that will be realized. 

 Dedicated IPR agreement if any could be separate of part of the business agreement 

and defines juridical and economical aspects related to potential previous knowledge 

produced. 

 Material transfer agreement (MTA), which regulates e.g. how the procedures shall be 

performed, the purpose of the assignment, time plan, contacts and responsibilities. 

 Quality and audit agreement could be part of the business agreement or separate. The 

purpose is to define the final quality level and the possibility for the client to audit the 

provider facilities. 

 Research exemption agreement (typical for public research centers (could be part of 

the business agreement or separate) that will permit to public research center to use 

for research purposes potential previous knowledge that will be patented by the 

client. 

If the contract is not clear, your project can be much more expensive than what you 

thought at the beginning. When a CRO undertakes to use a certain technique or competence, 

be sure to add this into the agreement. Sometimes the success of a method depends on a 

certain person, and the access to this person should also be included in the agreement. If the 

CRO will be using subcontractors, it has to be specified what they will deliver, and whose 

responsibility it is to guarantee that the subcontractor delivers the correct product of the right 

quality and at the right time.  

Also try to include a plan for possible failures and what to do if things do not work out 

according to the plan (e.g. research work that does not result in success within a reasonable 

time frame, quantity of material is not fulfilled, timing is not fulfilled, recruitment of patients 

or staff does not keep up to speed). It is important to specify what happens if the service 

provider, the subcontractor or the outsourcing company goes bankrupt. 

 



 
 

 

Other aspects to making your outsourcing project successful: 

-Read How to Choose a CRO (http://www.contract-biotechnology.com/test-requests/) 

-Read How to work with a CRO (http://www.contract-biotechnology.com/test-requests/) 

 

The guide has been developed in collaboration with service providers, drug developing 

companies and outsourcing consultants. If you have any comments about this guideline, please 

do not hesitate to contact us at info@contract-biotechnology.com 


